MINUTES OF THE
TUPELO PLANNING COMMITTEE

April 6, 2009

A regular meeting of the Tupelo Planning Commitiees held Monday, April 6, 2009 at
6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of City Hall. nduittee members present were:
Chairman Michael Gratz, Jr., Vice-Chair Cindy Sasd&ecretary Mitch Ellett, Mr. Russ
Wilson, Mr. Dick Johnson, Mr. Bill Smith, Jr., MRud Robison, Mrs. Judy Brown, and
Mrs. Mabel Murphree. Department of Developmentwiges staff present was: Director
BJ Teal, City Planner Pat Falkner, Zoning Admimgtr Marilyn Vail, and
Administrative Assistant Nikki Burton.

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Gratz called the meeting to order. Mr.itbmave the invocation and Mr.
Ellett led the Pledge of Allegiance. After an oduction of staff and committee, Mr.
Gratz explained the meeting’s procedures. He toefirmed the agenda. All applicants
were present at this time.

REVIEW/APPROVED PREVIOUS MINUTES

Mr. Smith made a motion to approve the minutes. Bllett seconded the motion, which
passed unanimously.

REPORT ON COUNCIL ACTIONS

Mr. Falkner stated that Item 2 from the March PlagnCommittee agenda was a
variance request by a restaurant seeking the dddeey and light wine. Mr. Falkner
stated that after the variance was approved byPthaning Committee on MarcH'®Q
their decision was appealed to the City Councisbgrounding property owners, but then
the original variance request was withdrawn byapplicant, thus the item became void.
He then stated that Item 3 from the March Planr@mmmittee Agenda was a major
conditional use request to allow a dirt mining @&xdavation pit near Willie Moore Road
in the Haven Acres community. He stated that tdwa was appealed to the City Council
by the applicant, after receiving denial from tHarfding Committee on MarcH'® and
has been postponed at the applicant’s requestthatipril 7" City Council meeting.

NEW BUSINESS

1. Reguest for an extension of building permits for the proposed Tupelo
Place Apartments to be located on M cCullough Boulevard in an R-3,
M ulti-Family Residential Zone.

Mr. Falkner stated that the Planning Committee teewed and approved this project
in 2008. He stated that the project had requiezdming approval along with major site



plan approval and the approval of a major conditiarse. Mr. Falkner stated that the
zoning process was completed and the construct#ors pvere reviewed and approved by
the staff and building permits were issued. MrlkRar explained that following the
issuance of the building permits, the applicantfieat the Department of Development
Services that the developers of the project wowdnsrequire a postponement of
construction due to the delay in the Toyota projacBlue Springs, Mississippi. Mr.
Falkner explained that the code has a requirenmantiftconstruction of a project has not
begun within six months of the permit’s issuanéentan extension must be granted by
the Planning Committee. He then stated that thf stcommends approval of the
requested extension and that the project is withenscope of the new Comprehensive
Plan and serves its purposes even though it waslajmd before the finalization of the
plan.

Mr. Nathan Waggoner, Cash Waggoner & Associate§ WQAlkest 8 Street, Jasper,
Indiana, stated that he is the project engineethferproposed Tupelo Place Apartments,
LLC. He stated that the project has receivedhal necessary approvals, but when the
Toyota project decided in December of 2008 to ddayproject, the developer of the
apartments decided also decided on a delay, durigmess reasons. Mr. Waggoner
stated that the apartment market is directly teethe Toyota project. He then stated that
he would like to have an extension for the explvadding permits so that the developer
may be ready for construction when the Toyota ptajesumes construction.

At this time, Mr. Gratz closed the public input pon of the meeting and opened the
meeting to the discussion of the committee.

Mr. Wilson stated that if the code has changedesiine approval of the project, the
project should now be reviewed and held to thedstads of the latest adopted code.

Mrs. Brown stated that the building permits weriesd on November 25, 2008 and will
expire on August 25, 2009. She then clarified tat Falkner gave the developer a 30
day extension, so the building permit will now expin September of 2009 if the
Planning Committee does not grant an additionatresibn. Mr. Falkner agreed. Mrs.
Brown then stated that according to the lettertemitoy Mr. Falkner to the developer, the
staff extension would expire on February 4, 200@stan additional extension would
need to be requested of the Planning Committeeelyuary 4, 2009. Mrs. Brown then
stated that the letter from the developer requgsdin additional extension was dated
February 19, 2009, past the Februafydlie date and then asked Mr. Falkner if the
permits would still expire in September of 2009.r. Malkner stated yes. Mrs. Brown
asked what would happen regarding the building gerand their costs if the Planning
Committee denied the extension. Mrs. Teal stated since his building permits have
gone past the expiration, technically they couldreeoked and the developer could
request for a portion of the permit fees be reimbdr Mrs. Brown stated that according
to the Development Code, the permits are still gootll September 2009. Mrs. Teal
explained that the staff has to adhere to two seépacodes: The City of Tupelo
Development Code, and the 2006 International BugdCode. She explained that
building code requires any project to begin workhimi 180 days of obtaining a building



permit and must obtain the first inspection of pineject within 180 days of the beginning
of construction. Mrs. Teal stated that the devetdpas passed all of those requirements
as per the 2006 International Building Code. MmsalTfurther stated that if the Planning
Committee chooses to grant an extension, the stillffreinstate the permits and not
charge an additional fee.

Mrs. Murphree asked if the committee could placditawhal conditions on the project

with the approval of the extension. Mrs. Teal elataccording to the code, yes the
committee may do so and could also charge a reamsemt fee for the permits. Mrs.

Murphree confirmed with Mrs. Teal that it is costty the Department of Development
Services to review and reprocess the project. Migphree stated that if the extension
is granted, the committee should ensure any nevesa@de being upheld and that a
reinstatement fee is issued to warrant the timeedfudt of the staff. Mr. Johnson asked
if the committee could legally charge a fee andedskir. Falkner if he had asked for
legal advice on such. Mr. Falkner stated that de ot asked for legal advice regarding
issuance of fees by the committee. Mrs. Murphtated that she had asked for legal
advice regarding fees and was told that the coramittould place conditions on the
extension, including fees. Mrs. Murphree thenestdhat her position would be to vote
in favor of a one year approval of the extensiothefproject with the conditions that the
project be subject to the new development code el ag pay a reinstatement fee to
offset the cost of the staff having to review amdgess the project for a second time.
The committee then asked Mr. Falkner to seek legahcil regarding reinstatement of
fees.

Mr. Wilson asked what the committee would do ifwork had begun within 24 months.
Mrs. Murphree stated that the entire project wawded to be reevaluated according to
land use in Tupelo.

Mr. Wilson asked Mr. Waggoner for a time frame floe beginning of the project. Mr.
Waggoner stated that he speculates constructidrbggin on the project within the next
12 to 18 months. Mr. Waggoner stated that the dlA8 month time frame is the
projected start of the Toyota project.

Mr. Wilson then asked how the committee could caimevith reinstatement fees.

Mrs. Brown stated that the extension request dideguire any notice to the surrounding
property owners. Mr. Falkner agreed. Mrs. Browaiexd that when the project first

came to the Planning Committee in 2007, there vmhsrast from the surrounding

property owners due to drainage issues and con@bost the property’'s use. Mrs.

Brown asked if there would be a public hearindhé Planning Committee only granted a
one year extension, and no work had begun wherexttension expired. Mr. Falkner

stated no because the only request that would tedg re submitted would be for a
major site plan, which requires no public hearingle then stated that the granted
conditional use had no time limitations.



Mr. Gratz asked if the staff could give an estimatenoney spent on the project by the
developer to give the committee and idea of thal intvestment to date. Mrs. Teal stated
that the city has received $24,178.40 in permis feem the developer. Mr. Wilson
asked Mrs. Teal if she had any experience with geemstatement fees in other cities
she has worked with. Mrs. Teal stated no. Mr.Séfl then asked the staff of a fair
opinion of what a reinstatement fee. Mr. Falkrtatedd that the fee would depend on the
scope of whether there were any changes in thes flzat are necessary due to code
changes. Mr. Falkner stated there would only Is¢ ttjthe department involved if a new
set of construction plans were submitted.

Mrs. Sanders asked if the committee could includeits motion that a maximum
reinstatement fee of 10% of the cost of the peribmtgollected with the Department of
Development Services deciding that if the changessenple, the fee could be reduced.
Mrs. Teal stated that would be appropriate.

Mr. Robison asked which building code was in effatten the permits were issued.
Mrs. Teal stated that the 2006 International BanddCode was the adopted code by the
City of Tupelo in 2008. She then stated that aulyethe department is beginning
reviews of the 2009 International Building Code.r. NRobison asked if it would be
necessary to review the project under the 2009,abtiee code were adopted during the
extension. Mrs. Teal stated that the staff wo@adento wait and see if any changes in the
project were significant enough to require a falliew under the possible new codes.

Mrs. Brown clarified that Mrs. Sanders would likee dap a reinstatement fee at 10% of
the issued building permit fee. She then statatldbcording the Mrs. Teal, there could
be significant changes in the project, thus the ddmpent of Development Services
would only receive $2,400 to do the same amoumtark processing and reviewing the
project, yet received approximately $24,000 whengloject was first submitted. Mrs.
Teal stated that the original $24,000 fee includiksnspections site visits done by the
building department, fire department, and the esxgyimg department. Mrs. Teal then
stated that at this point, the changes betweeatutrent code and the future codes are not
what she would perceive to be as negative to tbhegqr

Mr. Wilson suggested the reinstatement fee not exkc@5% of the original building
permit costs and the minimum cost could be $0héré were no changes or if the
developer chose to not go forward with the projedts. Brown stated that she does not
have a problem with an extension of 12 months Vais, but would not want this
developer or any future developers from constamgtyibmitting requests to the Planning
Committee.

Mrs. Sanders suggested giving the developer am&gte of 18 months rather than 12
months due to the economical recession. Mrs. Memlagreed, but stated that she
would rather see a minimum cap of $1,000.

Mr. Wilson made a motion to extend the buildingmes and the approval of the major
site plan for a period of 18 months with a $1,00limum reinstatement fee and



maximum 25% reinstatement fee based on the $24lQ%&id to date and at any such
point that the project is reinstated, the curreav&opment Code and construction code
standards that are applicable to the project at tihae will be upheld. Mr. Smith
seconded the motion, which was restated by Mr.Z5then amended by Mr. Johnson at
the suggestion of Mr. Falkner to include the deteation of the 25% reinstatement fee
be based on the staff's recommendation of thetodte staff at the time of review. The
motion to amend was seconded by Mrs. Sanders.\WMson agreed to the amendment,
followed by Mr. Smith.

Mr. Gratz stated the amended motion as beforedstaith the added clause to include the
statement “that the exact reinstatement fee isestiltp the Department of Development
Services’ evaluation and determination.”

The motion carried unanimously.

Mrs. Brown asked if the approved application reggiaction from the City Council. Mr.
Falkner stated no, but would verify it with legalunsel for clarification.

2. Text Amendments
a. 9.65. Minimum L andscape Standards

Mr. Falkner stated that the City Council had rege@s Development Code amendment
that would provide some additional language abourtfyard landscaping and allowing
things to grow up and reduce the size of the gpasson of the yard and removing dead
trees. He stated that the language was draftedtypyttorneys at Mitchell, McNutt, &
Sams. He then stated that he has suggested to ityeCGuncil that the Planning
Committee would need to review the proposed amentsiace it is an amendment to
the Development Code.

Mr. Wilson stated that the sentence in the prop@sedndment reads “these standards
shall include the full dimensions of the originalrgl.” Mr. Wilson asked for clarification
of the statement, stating that it seemed unenfbteeaVrs. Murphree asked if there were
currently any code regulations for yard upkeep.. Falkner explained that according to
the Development Code, front yards are required @aeehsome sort of landscaping
including grass, shrubs, and flowers can have neertltan 35% of the area covered in
concrete, and shrubs must be planted along thé dfaa building. Mrs. Murphree stated
that the Development Code also states that shruiss Ine kept trimmed and shaped, but
then asked if the city has a requirement for lotwing. Mr. Falkner stated yes, but lot
mowing is usually held to those standards of threosmding area. Mrs. Murphree asked
if lot mowing and landscape standards would besied when the city decides to rewrite
the code. Mr. Falkner replied yes.

Mrs. Brown clarified that anyone can initiate anesnsiment to the Development Code,
whether a citizen, a member of the Planning Conesjttor a member of the City

Council. She stated that after the initiation led amendment, two public hearings are
required, of which the first is held by the Plarghidommittee and the second will be held



by the City Council. She then asked if proper e¢otivas given regarding the public
hearing on the Planning Committee’s agenda. Mkréa stated yes. Mrs. Brown then
stated that the Planning Committee would be rewiguiree separate amendments in the
meeting, two of which were suggested by the Depamtrof Development Services, and
one of which was suggested by a member of the @ityncil. Mr. Falkner agreed. Mr.
Gratz asked Mrs. Brown if a vote on an amendmequires a two-thirds vote, or a
simple majority vote. Mrs. Brown answered thatetjuired a simple majority. Mr.
Wilson clarified that the Planning Committee’s apgl of an amendment would be a
recommendation to the City Council, who would theve the final vote. Mr. Falkner
agreed. Mr. Gratz asked the staff to clarify weégdl counsel that an amendment requires
a simple majority vote rather than a two-thirds oni#y vote before it can be forwarded
to the City Council. Mr. Falkner stated that aclog to the Development Code, a
simple majority vote is all that is required to pas amendment, but would asked for
legal council regarding variances.

Mr. Gratz then explained that the Department ofddgyment Services and the Planning
Committee are in the beginning stages of draftingeas Development Code. Mrs.
Murphree asked the point of making several amentsrenthe code when a new code
would be reviewed for adoption within the next ntogwelve months. Mrs. Teal stated
that the International Property Maintenance Codedwrently been adopted by the city
and addresses issues like landscaping and the Eaftecement Division of the
Department of Development Services has mechaniangdace to monitor overgrown
vegetation and other landscaping problems.

Mrs. Brown stated that as the staff and commitexgéews a new development code and
amendment, the points that are made about govehadgs, and normally a two-thirds
majority vote for an amendment, should be strorgiysidered as revised codes are
reviewed.

Mr. Wilson stated that, according to the currentv@epment Code, if the Planning
Committee does not make action on a text amendmigimin 30 days of the first public
hearing, the City Council may make action as thegyose. Mr. Gratz then asked for a
motion.

Mr. Johnson made a motion to defer the proposedstaping amendment until some
point in time when it is considered in conjunctiith the total revision of the current
Development Code. Mrs. Sanders seconded the metluoh passed unanimously.

b. 11.1.2 Off Street Parking Space Requirements

Mr. Falkner asked the Planning Committee if theyulddike to discuss the remaining
two proposed amendments or defer those two, algd,aulater time. Mr. Wilson and
Mr. Johnson stated that they were both of the isgo@& from the Planning Committee’s
work session held one week prior to the public ingathat the Planning Committee was
ready to take action on the remaining two prop@edndments. Mrs. Brown stated that
if the Planning Committee follows the line of reasm of the past motion, then they



have to defer the two remaining proposed amendmedle then stated that she did not
understand how the committee could justify the owtithat had just been passed
deferring the proposed landscaping amendment las#ake fact that they wanted to wait

until the code was re-written. Mr. Wilson disagteeMrs. Murphree stated that it would

be prudent for the committee to use their time lyisexd wait to act on the remaining

two proposed amendments, which could easily belbdray variance until a new code is

written. Mr. Falkner agreed, but stated he woulle the committee to discuss the
proposed amendment for off-street parking becauseuld conceivable have an effect
on life and safety.

Mr. Falkner stated the material in the proposeestftet parking amendment came about
as a result of several departments, including poéod fire, review of a proposed
business that was allowed to open based on therguparking standards. Mr. Falkner
stated that the current Development Code usesizkeo$ a building to determine the
parking standards for it. He stated that the staff recently reviewed a night club with
an open unobstructed floor plan that, according~ite Marshall Jason Cross, could
accommodate approximately 700 people, but the ouparking area would not support
that many parking spaces, which would cause pati@nzark in restricted areas or on
other properties. Mr. Falkner explained that theneo provision in the current code that
allows parking spaces to be determined by occupimaty only the size of the footprint
of the building. He stated that because of the thaycurrent code is written, the staff
had no choice but to allow the proposed nightcedgn though if the building is ever
filled to capacity, the parking will not be adequat He then stated that the lack of
parking could cause a problem for emergency vehielgering the property if they are
needed on the premises.

Mr. Gratz opened the meeting to discussion amoagtmmittee. Mr. Wilson stated he
felt the committee should act on the proposed pgreimendment. Mrs. Murphree asked
Mr. Falkner if the staff and committee had evernspany time re-writing parking
requirements found in the current code. Mr. Falkstated that parking requirements
have been changed with variance application inpdm&t, but the code has never been
amended. Mrs. Murphree asked if there was anatitgnance or code that could address
parking requirements until a new code is adopteir. Falkner stated no, the
Development Code is the only code the city has téquires parking. Mrs. Murphree
asked what other facilities in Tupelo have a 70(spe capacity. Mr. Falkner stated that
Benjamin’s on Main possibly has a large capacityt is located in the Downtown
District, thus they are not required to provide-stfleet parking. He further stated that
Benjamin’s and other nightclubs are the types tdldishments that would need more
off-street parking. Mrs. Murphree stated that wio@ld like to know of other facilities in
Tupelo that could accommodate 700 people. Mr. falkstated that the Summit on
North Gloster, or the Furniture Markets on ColeyaRocould hold a large number of
people, but both facilities also have adequateipgrk

Mr. Falkner then stated that the aforementioneg@sed business that was reviewed and
approved by the staff is located in a retail budgdihat does not have adequate parking
for this type of use. Mrs. Murphree asked Mr. lRelkto describe the scenario of the



business to the committee again, and discuss tgnaly. Mr. Falkner stated that the
facility is actually the backend of a retail sttipat has a Subway and a beauty supply
store and one other retail store. Mrs. Murphrdeddgor clarification of “backend.” Mr.
Falkner described the “backend” as a facility ledatn the rear of the building. He
stated that the facility had previously been usgedVlail Managers as a sorting facility
that had practically no customers and did not reedarge parking area. Mr. Falkner
explained that when Mail Managers moved out of bhéding, the proprietors of the
building decided it was a good place for a nighiclaven though the Department of
Development Services felt that the parking was egagte and it's relationship to the
other businesses around it.

Mr. Wilson asked Mr. Falkner if fuel or any type flmmable liquids stored in the
building adjacent to the nightclub. Mr. Falkneatsd that he did not know. Mr. Wilson
stated that he knew that an oil company is located door.

Mrs. Brown stated that she had attended the plailewemeeting where the staff and

other departments had discussed the nightclub. stited that the staff had required the
owner of the nightclub to provide letters from thearby businesses, one of which is
open at night and has the same hours as the night&8he asked Mr. Falkner if all of the
business had provided the required letters, gipagnission to the nightclub to use the
parking areas of the adjacent businesses. Mr.nEalktated that the Department of
Development Services had given the nightclub aifiatie of Occupancy based on

minimum number of parking spaces being availabl&ant of the building. He stated

that the staff had reviewed at other options, idiclg off-site parking, but patrons would

then cross adjacent properties to access the mphtcSome property owners gave
permission to use their parking and some did not.

Mrs. Murphree asked if parking spaces are specifiethe lease agreements for the
adjacent property owners. Mr. Falkner stated tletdid not know. Mrs. Murphree
asked if parking spaces were usually allotted leydyuare feet of store frontage. Mr.
Falkner stated that the staff normally reviews ttype of parking arrangement as
“shared” parking. He stated that during the day,normal business hours, there is
usually an agreement between tenants about thenpatkat is adequate for their
customers. He then stated that the nightclub hmetating hours opposite two of the
three other business located in the retail sthjgs. Murphree clarified that the nightclub
does not open until 10:00 p.m. Mr. Falkner statesl Mr. Smith asked the closing time
of the nightclub. Mr. Falkner stated 2:00 a.m. sMBrown asked the closing time of the
Subway Restaurant located in the strip. Mr. Fallstated 2:00 a.m. and stated that there
is some conflict with the Subway patrons. Mrs. puee then clarified that the
nightclub is located near North Mississippi Medi€Cainter. Mr. Falkner stated yes. Mrs.
Murphree then stated that parking could becomeobl@m and restated the fact that
emergency vehicles could have a problem enteriagtbperty.

Mr. Falkner stated that the staff had encounteredinalar situation with another
business, but the project had been dropped by alex before it had to have approval
by the Department of Development Services or tlaithg Committee. He explained



that the similar nightclub had technically met ddlvelopment code requirements, and
there is no provision in the building code to addrthe lack of adequate parking.

Mr. Gratz stated that he felt the committee haddhealevant comments by Mr. Falkner
about the immediacy of the safety issues of thatnlgb issue and asked for a motion.

Mr. Wilson made a motion to approve the propose#tipg amendment as presented for
the safety concerns discussed. Mr. Smith secoti@edotion, which passed 7 — 1, with
Mrs. Brown opposing the motion.

c. 12.2.4 Permanent Signs

Mr. Gratz asked Mr. Falkner to explain the amendmeMr. Falkner stated that he

thought the Planning Committee had decided to tdideamendment during their work

session. Mr. Gratz stated that since the commitiae taken the other two text

amendments had been voted on separately, the cteamiust have a discussion before
making a motion.

Mrs. Murphree stated that the staff and committeeehspent a lot of time working on
writing a sign ordinance. She stated that shetlfialt sign issues could be handled on a
case by case basis with a variance until a new isodatten.

Mrs. Brown stated that the new wording in the pimgEbsign text amendment makes a
statement of “grant administrative variance.” $iren stated that there is nothing in the
current code that allows an administrative variamacel asked Mr. Falkner for an
explanation. She further stated that all variamegsiire the Planning Committee to vote
by two-thirds majority. Mr. Falkner stated thatetlstaff has the authority to pass
administrative variances for such things as setbhaathin a limited scope, per Chapter
10 of the current Development Code.

Mrs. Murphree stated that she hopes the DepartwieBevelopment Services staff is

keeping a running list of variance application kattwhen the Development Code Sub-
Committee begins re-writing the code, they can esiithose to avoid similar problems
in the future. Mr. Gratz agreed.

Mrs. Murphree made a motion to table the propogechanent sign amendment until the
new code is written. Mr. Smith seconded the motwimich passed unanimously.

OTHER BUSINESS

1. Historic Preservation Committee Report

Mr. Smith stated that there was nothing to repoamf the Historic Preservation
Committee.

2. Candidate Education Forum Committee Report




Mr. Gratz stated that the Candidate Education Fohasibeen scheduled for Tuesday,
April 28, 2009 from 7:00 — 8:00 p.m. in the CounCihambers on the second floor of
City Hall. Mrs. Teal confirmed. Mr. Gratz statétht the sub-committee consists of
himself, Mrs. Sanders, and Mrs. Brown. Mrs. Brostated that she and Mrs. Sanders
and met earlier in the evening and had determimad Mr. Gratz will be doing a
presentation and Mrs. Teal and the Department ee@ement Services Staff will also
be presenting during the forum. She stated tlegt #iso discussed the Comprehensive
Plan annual report, which is due in September,vamtdked out a time-line for it and will
be working with the staff to get it ready for thiafthing Committee’s review in August
and the City Council’'s review in September. Mrgallstated that she and Mr. Falkner
will be meeting on Tuesday morning at 10:30 a.mthwpertinent staff to discuss
presentations and formats for the forum.

Mr. Wilson asked if the forum will be televised Bomcast. Mrs. Teal stated that the
staff will follow through with Comcast to determiifehe meeting may be televised.

Mrs. Brown then reminded the committee of the invgoce for all members to be

present at the forum. Mrs. Murphree stated that fsds a conflict the evening of the
scheduled forum and will not be able to attend. Wilson stated that he plans to be at
the forum, but will arrive late.

Mrs. Teal stated that invitations have been maitethe current council, Mayor, and all
candidates.

3. Development Code Re-Write Subcommittee

Mr. Gratz stated that the next meeting of the Degwelent Code Sub-Committee will be
Monday, April 13, 2009 at 5:00 p.m. He stated tt@ members of the committee are
Mr. Smith, Mrs. Murphree, Mr. Robison, and himself.

ADJOURN

There was no further business and the meetingadjasirned by Mr. Gratz.

10



